SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE
L PARTIES

Th:s Settlement Agre_em_ent ("Agreement") is entered into by and among:

A TheUnited States of America, acting throughits Depment of Justice and the United
States Attorney's Office for the District ofMassachusetts on behalfofthe Umted States Department |
of Health and I-Iuman Services th:ough its Oﬁice of Inspector General ("HHS -OIG") the United
States Department of Defense through i 1ts 'I'RICARE Support Office (“TSO" (forrnerly the Oﬁce
- of the Civilian Health and Medical Program of the Uniformed Semc&s), a field activity of the Office
of the Secretaxy of Defense, through counsel; the United States Office of Personm;l Management
(“OPM") through theDlrector of Programs; and the United States Department of Veteran Aﬂ‘zurs
{FVA?), throu gh counsel (collectively the preceedmg will be referred to as the "United States“), |

B. LIFECHEM, INC. (“LIFECHEM™) a Delaware corporanon and who[iy owned

subsidiary of National Medical Care, Inc;; NMC Medxcal Products, Inc. (“MPD”)(fonnerly known

o as National Medical Care, Medical Products Division, Inc. andhefcrethatasEnka, Inc)), aDelaware '

_corporation and wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Natmnal Medical Care, Inc.; National Medical
Care, Inc. (‘MC’), a Delaware corporation and a wholly owried subsidiary of Fresenius Medical
Care Holdings, Inc.; and Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc. (dlb/a'Frgser_xius Medical Care‘Nérth .
America), a New York corpofation MCH’); and \ \ |

.C. - Tay A Buford, individuaﬂy, Russell J. Davis, individually; and William L. Schoff,
mdmdualiy (ccllectweiy the "Relators") |

Collectxvely, all of the above will be referred to as "the Parties.”



IL PREAMBLE
A WHEREAS, this Agreement addresses the United States' civil claims against
LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC, and FMcHundér the fe&eral statutes and common law doctrines set forth
in'-Paragg-aph 8 below, for the condi;ét described in Pr@amb_lg Paragraphs K through Y below, the

conduct described in public filings inUrﬁtgd States of Americav. NMC Homecare, Inc., LIFECHEM,

- INC. and NMC Medical Products, Inc,, Criminal Action No. [to be assigned](District of

Massachusetts)(the “Criminal Action”),- and the conduct alleged in the Relators’ Complaint and

Amended Complaint in United States ex rel. Jay A. Buford, Russell J. Davis and William L. Schoff
- v. Lifechem, Tnc.; Erka, Inc. (d/bja Na’fional Medical Care, Medical Products Division); National
Medical Care, Inc.; Fmsexﬁus Medical Care_AG‘; Fresenius National Medical Care Holdings, Inc.

{d/b/a Fresenius Medical Care--North America); and Sﬁectra Laboratories, Inc., Civil ActionNo. 95-

10706-NG (District of Massachusetts)(originally filed December 15, 1994 in the Middle District of
Tenheséee, Civil No. 3-94-1_105 and transferred to District of Massachusetts:in 1995)(the “Civil

Action”™);

B. WHEREAS, at all relév&nt times, NMC was a national provider of outpatient dialysis-

services to patients with eu& stage renal disease. One of NMC’s subsidiaries was LIFECHEM which'
| owned and operafed independentA chmcai laboratories in Northvale, New Jersey (later, Rbckleiéh,

3 -‘ New 'Ié_lf's_ey}, 5aqd.qudiaslszI-Iiﬂs,'Califomia, and wh_icﬁs’pecializgdii_x pfovi&ﬁg -laborafcl-;'y blood
: té'sting services for dialysis patients. _AI;Othéf one of NMé’svrvsubsidiarlies was MPD, which

manufactured, distributed, marke_ted' and sold products fdr use. in t‘he‘ dia!ysis setting, including

: labcratory'blood testing services.'ffom LIFECHEM; - | - |

‘€. WHEREAS, LIFECHEM has eatered into an agreement (the “LIFECHEM Piea

Agreement ) to plead gmlty on or before Ianuary 19, 2090 or on such other date as may be
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determined by the Céurt, to Count Two of the Information in the Criminal Action alleging a violation
of Title 18, United States Code, Section 286, namely, a conspiracy to defraud the United States

through the suiat.m'ssiok‘_: of fais:,e and fraudulent claims for paymeﬁt for oertam laboratory blood tests .
conducted for dialysis paﬂents . | '

D. WI-IEREAS MPD has entered into an agreement (the “MPD Plea Agreement”) to

_plead guilty onor before Ianua:y 18, 2000 oron such other date as may be detﬂ'mmed by the Court, |

| to Count Three of the Infom;aﬂon in the Criminal Action ailegmg a violation of Title 18, United

Staigs Code, Section 371, namely, a conspiracy to commit an offé_nse‘ aéainst the United States, to
wit, to offer and pay remuneration to ir;dube dialysis facilities to order and arrang.e'-fc‘)r the ;ordering'

from LIFECHEM of clinical laboratory blood testing services coniducted for dialys;is patients, and
paid for in whole or in part byMedicare, in violation of Title 42, United States Code, Section 1320a-

To(B)2)(B);

' . E. WHEREAS, LIEECI-EEM subrmtted or caused to be submitted ciaxms for payment to.
the Medicare program, Title XVII of the Social Sewnty Act, 42 0. S C. §§ 1395-1395ddd (1997),
which is admlmstered by the United States D_epartment of Health and Human Services; . -
| F. WHEREAS, LIFECHEM submitted or caused to be subnﬁtted claims for payment to

‘the TRICARE Program (aiSo known as the Civilian Health andMedmal Prpgram of the Uniformed |

' Services), 10US.C. §§ 101_1-1105, whichis administered by the Dé;:anméh?_ of Defense ﬂa'rdﬁgh‘ghe .

G WHERBAS, LIFECHEM submi&ed or caused to be submftted cIaixﬁs for payment to
ihg Federal Employess H&Ith’.ﬁéﬁeﬁt-Pro.gram.‘(“FEHBP“), 5US.C. §§ '8961'-39'14; w!uch is

administered by OPM;



H WHEREAS, LIFECHEI\i submitted or caused to be submitted claims for payment to |
the Railroad Retirement Medicare prozram (“Railroad Retirement Medicare™), estahhshed under the
Railroad Retirement Act of 1974, 45 US.C. §§ 23 1-23 1v, which is paid ﬁ‘oril the Medicare Trust.
Fund, and administered by the Umted States Railroad Retirement Board (“RRB") |

1 . - WHEREAS, I.IFECHEM subrmtted or caused to be subrmtted claims for payment to
the Veteran Affairs Program, 38 U.S.C. §§ 1701-1743, which is administered by the VA;

| I WHEREAS, LIFECHEM sﬁbmﬁttéd orcaused tobe subrr;itted claims for payment to
" the Medicaid programs, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1396-1396y (1997),. of the states of_Alal.:Jama, Anmna,
- Arkansas, Célifor_rﬁa, Colorado, Conn'a;ticut, Delaware, Flbrida, Georgia, I]]indis_;' Ind_ia‘na,_ Iowg,
. Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana,.Ma_ihe, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Mississippi, Missour,
Montana, ﬁe&v Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, NewY'c;rk, North Carolma, Ohio, Oregon,
Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia,
vﬁsccnssﬂ, and the District of Columbia (the "Participating States");

K.  WHEREAS, the United States alleges that at various times frbrﬂ August'1, 1991
through November 1, 1999, L{FECHEM and MPD violated federal statutes and/or common law

doctrines specified in Paragraph 9 below in connection with the marketing, sale, pricing and billing

of tesﬁng for. Hepatitis B. IgM core (designated by Current Procedural Terminology (“CP.'I”) Code L

o '.85290) both vindividually and as part ofLIFECHEM’s Hepauns Panels (LIFECH'EM 011 and 03

" and Proﬁles Ol and IV (LIFECHEM 003 and 004) by submfttmg or causing to be subrmtted false :
and ﬁaudulextt claims for these tests that 'LIFECHEM and MPD knew were not speciﬁcally ordered
by phymc:ans, and ﬁzrther imew were not msonable and necessary. fcr the diagnosis or treatment of

iliness or injury, and thm tasts were blﬂed by and paid to LIFECHEM
EN :



I. WHEREAS, the United States alleges that at various times from August 1, 1991

through November 1, 1999, LIFECHEM and MPD violated federal statutes and/or common law

doctrines specified 'in.Paragrz_Lph 9 below in connection with the marketing, sale, pricing and billing .

of testing for Hepatitis C antivody (CPT Code 86302) both individuzmy and as a part ,of
LIFECHEM’s Hepatitis Panels (LIFECHEMO11 and 031) and Profiles I and IV (LIFECHEM 003
and 004), by submitting or causing to be submitted false and_ﬁau';iulent claims for these tests that
LIFECHEM and MPD knew were not sﬁéciﬁcally ordered by physicians and ﬁlrther knew were not
reasonabie and necessary forthe dlagnoszs or treatment of illness or mjury atthe ﬁequency provxded

-and these tests were billed by and paid to LIFECHEM; = -

M.- WHEREAS, the United States alleges that at various times from August 1, 1991

through'_November 1, 1999 LIFECHEM and MPD violated federal statutes and/or common _law
déc,trine’s speciﬁed in Paragraph 9 Beloﬁr in connection with the marketing, sale, pﬁcing and billing
of testing for Hepatitis B surface antibody (CPT 86291) and HepﬁﬁsB surface antigen (CPT 86287)
both individually and as part of LIF_ECHEM’S Hepatitis Panels (LIFECHEM-OH and 031) and
Profiles IIT and IV (LIFECHEM 003-and 004), by submitting or causing to be submitted false 5nd
fraudulent claims fol_' these tests that LIFECHEM and MPD knew were not reasonable aind necessary
for the diagnosis or treatment of illness or injury at the frequency provided, and thése tests were billed

* byand paidto LIFECHEM;

'N. - WHEREAS the: Umted States alleges that at various times from March 1, 1991 :

through November 1, 1999, LIFECHEM and MPD violated fedexai statutes andlor common law.

- doctrines specified. mParagraph 9 below in connection w:th the marketing, sale, pricing and b‘llmg Lo
of testing for magnesium (CPT 83735 and §_3?50) both mdmduaﬁy-and as part of LIFECHEM's -

.CA/PHOS Product Panel (LIFECHEM 019): by submitting or causing to be submitted false and. -

5 . . - 7,



fraudulent claims for these tests that LIFECHEM and MPD knew were not speciﬁcélly ordered by
physicians, and firther knew were not reasonable and necesséry for the diagnosis or treatment of
iﬁness or injury, and these tests were billed by and paid to LIFECHEM, | |
0. WHEREAS, the Umted States alleges that at various nmes ﬁ'om January 1, 1991
through November 1, 1999, L!FECI{EM and MPD vualated federal stahxtes and/or common law -
~ doctrines specified in Paragraph 9 below in connection thh the marketing, sale, pricing and bllhng
“of tests for apoﬁpoprotgin (CPT 82172)- both indi\_éiduéﬁy and as part-cf.f IJFEC;-IEM?S Lipid Panél
(LIFECHEM 009), by -‘submittiﬁg or causing to be. submitted filse and fraudqlent claims for these
tests that LIFECHEM and MPD knew were not spéciﬁcally ordered by physicians, and further ktew
were not reasonable and necessary for the diagnosis 0_1: treatment of illness or injury, and these tests
were billed by and -péic; to LIFECHEM: | |
I mREAS, the United States alleges that at various times ﬁoni January 1, 1991
through November 1, 1999, LIFECHEM violated federal_statut%; and/or common law ;!octri;les
| specified in Paragraph 9 below in connection with the .ma,rketing, sale, pricing z;nd 'bi!iing of
automated tesﬁng for piateléts (CPT 85595) performed on the same day asa composite rate test for
a Complete Blood Count (“CBC){CPT 85025) by submlttmg false and fraudulent claims for these
tests that LIFECHEM knew were not separa:.eiy ordered by physxcxans, and ﬁxrther knew were not
" --separ_ateiy billable updc: -gpphc_able Medxcare rules_beca_use they were mc_luded as part of the CBC -
*for which Medicare had already paid, and theSe tests were siuéd by and p;id to LIFECHEM:
Q.A WHEREAS the United States alleges that at various times. fmm J'anumy I, 1994-
' through November 1, 1999, LIFECHEM and MPD vxolated federal statutes andlor comimon Iaw
doctnnes spe;c:xﬁed in Paragraph ¢ be!ow_ in c\onnectxon thh the mark_enng, sale, pricing and bllhng.
of tests for prealbumin (cp'r's_41'34), by subn:izﬁng or causing to be submitted flse and fraudulent -
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claims for these tests that LIFECHEM and MPD knew were not reasonable and necessary for the
diagnosis or treatment of illness or injury at the frequency provided, and these tests were billed by',and '
paid to LIFECHEM |

R ._WHEREAS, the United State; alleges that at various times from January 1, 1995

' thrcugh Novembér 1, 1999, LIFECHEM viola'ted federal statutes and/or common law doctrines
specified in Paragraph 9 below in connection with tﬁe marketing and billing of individual chemistry
:-tests ordered and pex;foméd on _-thE same aay as a;siqmated chemistry panels, &om asLIFECHEM’s
*“Chem- Cc;mpbsite” and “CAPD Chem Coﬁlposite” par;els (LIFECHEM 120H and 120P), by |

" submitting false ax;d ﬁ'auduleﬁt claims for theée tests that LIFECHEM knew were. not sepa:ately

'bxﬁabie under apphcabie Medzcare rul&c, and these tests were billed by and paid to LIFECHEM;

S. WHE,REAS the Umted States a!ieges that at various times from June 1, 1990 through
November 1, 1999, LIFECHEM and MPD violated federal_ statutes and/or common law doctnncs |
sp}zciﬁgd in Pgmgraph 9 below in connection with the billing of automated chemistry tests ordered
and performed on the same day ‘as the composite rate “Chem 20" (LIFECHEM 120), by submitting
or causing to be submitted false and fraudulent claims for these tests that LIFECHEM and MPD
knew were not blllabie under apphcable Medzcare rules because they were mcluded in the Chem 20
~ for which Medicare had aiready paxd, and these tests were billed by and paid to LIFECHEM,

T WI{EREAS the Umted S:ates alleges that at various times ﬁ'om Iune 1, 1990
through November I 1999 LIFECHEM molated federal statutes and/or common law doctrmcs as
_ ;pecnﬁed in Paragraph A9-b¢low in connection with the bxlhng of _cqmposyte rate tests wl_len the
LIFECHEM computer periodically failed to identify &mf, by submitting or causing to be-suﬁnﬁfted .

false and fraudulent claims for these tests that LIFECHEM knew were not séparatgly billable t_mdef

A
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applicable Medicare rules because they were already reimbursed by Medicare through the composite
rate payment to the dia.iysis facility, and these tests were l?illed by and paid to LIFECHEM;
U.  WHEREAS, the Uﬁited States alleges that at various times from June 1, 1990 through
" November 1, 1999, LIFECHEM violated federal statut&s and/or common law doctnines as specified
| in Paragraph 9 below by pex.fc_zr'ming andbﬂ!mg aCBC(CPT 85025) ivhe;x a hematocrit_(CPf 85013
and 85014) 0.r a hemoglobin (CPT 85018) was ord.erec.i by a physician, by submitting false and
fraudulent claims for mege tests that LIFECHEM knew were not ordered by physicia_ﬁs, and further
knew were not lawfully billable under CPT 85025, and these tests were billed by and paid to
. LIFECHEM; | | '

V. WHEREAS, the United St’aigs alleges that at vérious txmes from Iune. 1, 1990 through
November 1, 1999,_LIFECI§EM violateci federal statutes and/or common law doctrines as ;pe_ciﬁedr .
in Paragraph 9 below by pexfpnning,aﬁd billing a CBC with differential (CPT 85025) whena CBC
-without differential was ordefed'by a physician, by submitting false and fraudulent claims for th&;e
tests tha;t LIFECHEM knew were not ordered by physicians, and further knew were not lawﬁﬁly
billable under CPT 85025, and these tests were bilied by and paid to LIFECHEM,;

W. WI-{EREAS, the United States aﬂt_:gesihat at various times from May, 1987 through

Nbvember 1,- 1999, LFEECHEM and MPD violated federal siatutes and/or common lawrdoctrines, :

" " ‘asspecified inParagraph 9 belowin connection with sales and marketing practices that were designed

to increase orders for laboratory tests, .including medféa]ly unnecessaxy iaboratory tests, such
pra(:ﬁm including compensation of the-mf) sales force through comnﬁssions an(i bonuses directljr
tiedto mcreased Iahoratory testmg, use of the Lifeline camputer system to-assign tests and dlagnosrs
codes to muitzp!e patients thhout regard to the patzents individual medical condmon, use of
' permanent standing orders for !aborato'ry test: for patients without regard to the paﬁents’ _individual
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medical condition, misrepresentations to some physiciahs that NMC medical policy supported usc of
certain panels and tests when it did not, misrepresentations to some physmans that paneled tests were
: cheaper or more economical-than individual tests when they were not, and insertion of certain
" laboratory tests and diagnosis codes into the Lifeline computer system without a physzclan 5 order
- X.  WHEREAS, the United States a}ieges that at various times from May, 1987 through_'-
November 1, 1999, LIEECHEM and MPD violated federal statutes and/or common law dcctnnes
as s;;éciﬁed in Paragraph 9 below in connection with their wﬂlﬁ:l, .lcnoviir;g and deliberate ;;ayrnenf |
of illegal remuneration to éialysis facilities and’ their owners, officers, 'directrors, employees, -
representatives, or agents, in the form of lavish entenainx_nént; hunting trips; payﬂient for full time
employees; grants; up-front rebate checké; discounts and special pricing onproduct_s; ﬁ'ée orlow cost v
.laborz_ltoly testing _fof : indiéen;‘ patiénts, facility . staff, and HMO patients; &ee or low: cost
environmental and machine testmg, profit sharing with medical directors _pu@t to contracts
effective throggh December 3 1, 1991; c;)mposite rate tests bglow fair market '_f‘alue;-and cc;rﬁputer
hardware aﬁd software, all to obtain unlawful referrals of}aborator_;r business to LIFECHEM, and that
LE'ECHEM and MPD submitted or caused to be submltted false and fraudu]ent clalms for payment
~ to the United States for laboratory test business, mcludmg tests that LIFECHEM and MPD knew

werenot reasonab!e or necessarymthe dxagnosxs or ueam:ent ofillness‘or mjury, that were generated e

e -,by illegal !cc!d:acks, whlch iaboratory tests were bxl!ed by and paxd to LIFECHEM

Y. WHEREAS, the ‘United States alleges that the prac::ces descnbed in. Pr&amb!e‘:' T
Paragraphs K through X above resulted ln the submlssmn of false or ﬁ'a.udulent claims achonable '
under ihe False Claims Act, 31 US.C. §§ 3729-3733, to the. Medtcare Reilvoad Retirement -

" Medxcare, TRICARE, FEHBP, the VA, ai;d._:he M_edicaid programs of the Participating States;

%



 1320a-7a, for'the condupt described in Preamble Paragraphs KthroughY;

.-

Z. WHEREAS the United States contends that it has certain administrative claims ,

against LIFECHEM and MPD, and against NMC and FMCH as parents of LIFECHEM and MPD,

under the provisions for permissive exclus:on from Medicare, Medicaid, and other federal health care .

programs, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7(b)? and the provisions for civil monetary penalties, _42 US.C. §

AA WHEREAS, with the sole exceptidn of the guiity pleas entered by LIFECHEM and

MPD in the Criminal Action, LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC and FMCH contend that LIFECHEM anid
MPD’s marketing, éales, pricing, paneling and billing practices were appropriate and iawﬁﬂ and did

not result in any violations of federal or state law or common law-doctrines; and further specifically

_deny and'aﬁrm#ﬁvely-contest the allegations of the Relators in the Civil Action; and

'BB. WHEREAS, toavoid the delay, expénse, inconvenience and uncertainty of protracted

-Hﬁgéﬁon of these claims, the Parties mutually desire to reach a full and firial compromise of claims

that the United States has against LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC and FMCH for the conduct described
in Preamble Paragraphs K through Y above, pursuant to Terms and Conditions set forth below:

- OL. TERMS AND CONDITIONS -

NOW, THEREFORE, inreliance onthe representations contained herein andin consideration :

of the mutual promises, covenants, and obhgancns in this Agreement and for goad ‘and valuable
conmderatioa, recelpt of whu:h is hereby acknowiedged, the Part:es agree as: follows

I_. _NMC and FMCH, collectxvely, shall pay to the Umted Stdtes and the Pamalpanng
States collecuvely, the sum of one lmndred twclve rmlhon one hundred sixty thousand dollars
(31 12 160, 000) (the “Setﬁ'ement Amount”), and thxs sum shall constitute adebt unmedlateiy due and
" owing to the United States upon the Iata of the dates on wiuch (@) t}us Agreemexzt is ﬁx!lym:emted

by the Partles (b) the notice of dismissal descn'bed in Pamgraph 18 of this Agreement is filed and
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docketed by the Court, or (¢) the Court accepts I..IFECHEM and MPD’s guilty pleas .a:‘z_d the
sentences set forth in their respective Plea Agreements described in Preamble Paragraphs C and_D :
(the “First Payment Date”). I,«IMC and FMCH s'hallrpay the Settlement Amount to the United States
~ according to the scheduie terms and mstructxons ‘contained in the onnussory Note executed
~ contemporaneotis with this Agreement, aﬁached as Exhibit A, and mcorporated by reference Within
a reasonable amount of time after receipt_of the first payment from NMC and FMCH pursuant to the
terms of the Promissory Note, the United 'St_atf‘::.s.shall pay tg'the Par’t_iéipatigg States,_coﬂectively, |
- according to written payment instructions from the.Participating State_s, an amount of two million five
hundred twenty seven thousénd one hundred thlrty three dollars (52,527,133)'35 ti;e Panicipating
States’ share of the Settlement Amount. | | |
2. Asan expréss ccmdiiiou ofthe Seniemen;.Agregmeng to secure'; NMé’s and FMCH's
paymenf oﬁﬁgations under Paragraph 1 éf this Agree;meni (and the other civil Settlement Agreements
and criminal Plea Agreements executed contemporaneously), NMC .and FMCH shall: |
a. procure from the Bank of Nova Scoﬁa and deliver or ;:ause to be delivered to
the United States Attomey’s Office for the District of Massachiisetts, on or before J ‘;muz_iry 19, 2060, 7

an amendment to the unconditional, irrevocable Léﬁer of Credit Nao. 8020143 695/96 issued to the

Uruted States of America on September 27, 1996 (the “Letter of Credlt") to increase the amount of

* the Letter of Credit to $189,634, 445 “The amendment to the: Lctter of Credit shall be i the fonn SRS

attached as Exhibit B. Wthm 10 days of receipt by the’ US Attomey’s Ofﬁce of wntten' S

) confirmation from the transferring bank that a quarterly paym‘ent, as described i _qn Para‘grapbs 1B,
t%xfough IE of the Promissory Note, or f)répayr;ient of such q;ua:rt;erly payrhents; has been madeto
the United States, the United Sltaies shaﬁ ﬁrqﬁde written p'ex;missi{m tb_ the Bank of Nova Scotia tol :
reduce the amount available for drawing und;r Letter of Credit No. $020/43 695/96 by the amount
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| of the principal payment received. In the event that the entire outstanding payment obligation secured
by the Lettef of Credit is prepaid, then the United States shall provide written permission to reduce
 the amount a\'raﬂabie for drawing to zero. The United States shall return the Letter of Credit for
. cancellation when all §b1i§aﬁons secured by it are paid in full or it is determined, by the United States,
or pursuant _té a ﬁrial and non-appealable order of a court of C{;mpétentju.;iédic;ﬁorg' that NMC and
FMCH have fulfilled all such payment obligations to the United States; and |

b. on January 19, 2600, NMC and FMCH shall establish an escrow accounﬁ n

aﬁ: initial amount of $236,401,919 to bé: held by an independeat third party agreeable to the United

. States, and they shall increase the escrow amount each dayinan éﬁloum of $48,‘546‘ (tf:rough accrued
_interest -and/ or deposits), beginning on January 20, 2000 and continuing through Aprii 15, 2000, when
'the escrow amount each day will increase by an additional amount of $7;27I (through accrued
_ -interest anA('Il‘or' depaosits), for each quarterly paymént due before the ﬁrst payment is due on the First

Payment Date under the Promissory Note. On the First Payment Date all funds in the escrow account

shall be paid to the United States to satisfy the paymenf obligation in Paragraph 1.A. of fhe -

Promissory Note. The terms and conditions of this escrow account shall in no way limit NMC and
FMCIH’s payment obligations to the United States either pursoant to the Promissory Note or as

secured bir’-the.LeEter of Credit.

"3 NMC and FMCH are in default of this Agreement on:the date of occurrence of any - -

| . of t}_xe' following events ("Events of Default"):

a N‘MC’S and/or FMCH'’s fail.z'xre,to procure, deliver or mairitain the Lette; of
_Credit; | - | | |

5; NMC’s and/or FMCf?S failure to pay- any amount 'prbvided_ for in the
Pfdmissory Note within two days of when such payment is dite and payable; |
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c. If prior to making the full payment of the amount due under Paragraph 1, (i)
NMC and/or FMCH commences any case,'px.‘oceeding, or other actior (A) under any law relating to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorgmization or relief of debtors, seeking to have any order for relief of
-debtors, or seeking to adjudi@e NMC and/or FMCH as bankrupt or insoiveng or (B) seeking
| 'appointment'-éf a receiver, trus’éee, dus’todién .or other similar official for NMC and/or FMCH or for
all or any substantial part ofNMC’s and/or FMCH’s assets; or (ii) there shall be commenced against
- NMC and/or FMCH any sn-.tch case; pfocéeding or other action referred to in clause (i) which results
in the entrj of .an order fc‘Jr' relief and any such order rem#iris undismissed, or undischarged or
unbonded for a period of thirty (30) days; or (iii) NMC and/or FMCH takes any action authorizing,
or in furtherance of| oF indicariﬁg_its cons;:ﬂt to, ap'préval of, ‘or acqﬁiéscenée in, any of the acts setﬂ
forth above m sub—Pafagraph 3.c.(ii); or |
. d. NMC’s and/or FMCH's failure to. esi_abﬁ.‘.sh, maintain, or make the required
payments to. the escrow account descri!;éd in Paraéraph 2.!3.. |
4. If paymehts‘due under the Pxfomissoxfy Note are _receivo.d' late, but within the two-day.
grace period provided-in Paragraph 3.b., interest iﬁcun‘ed during such grace period will be assessed
at two times the daily amount in effect on the date the payment was due. -

5. NMC and FMCH shall provide the United States writtennotice of an Event of Default

g vnthm two (2) busin_ess days of such event by overnight ma..il,;o:facsimilc followed by overnight L

" delivery, to thé.United, States Atfémey’s Office, District of Maﬁsachusétts, One Courthouse Way,

Suite 9200, Boston, MA. 0221_0, Attenﬁcm Susan G Winkler, Assist.ant U.S. Attomey (or to‘ the
attention of such other pérson as may be desig'n'ééed in wnnng by the Uruted States Atfdrﬁ;.y’s- o
Office). B

‘.’
K3
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6. Immediafely upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, without further notice or
presentment and demand by the United States: |
a.- The Se:ttlcm'ént Amount plus accrued interest through the end of the applicable
quarter as set fo_rth-in Parggraph 1 of the Promissory Note (mmus any payments to date of pﬁncipal :
and interest) SM become immediately due and payable (“Sertiémcﬁt Default Amount™). Interest
shall be calculated on the Settlement Default Amt;u‘nt at the Pn’r’ne; ﬁa:e as published in the Wall

Street Journal on the Effective Date of tﬁe?rozrﬁssory Note plus 5% from the date of the Event of

Default. '

b . In addltxon, NMC and FMCan]] pay the Umted States all reasonable costs
of collection and enfercement of the Settlement Defauit Amount, mcludmg attorneys' fees and
expenses, pius interest as described in Paragraph 6.a. The Settlement Dgfault Amount, plus interest,

_ désé:ribed in Paragraph 6., together with the costs of collection and eﬁforc:ﬁlent déscn'bet_i in this
subfparaglfap}a, will be referred to as the "Default Obligation."
| 7. Upoﬁ ;ccuxfence of an'Event of Default, the I_fziited States may exercise, at its sole
option, one or more..of the following rights‘,:, '
a. The United States may draw the full amount available for drawmg under the -
Letter of Credlt and retain all proceeds thereoi
. .b.; .' o TheUmted States may enforccthetenns ofthe Guarantee Agreementbetween
| the United- Staxes of Amenca, Fmemus Medical ‘Care GMEH, a. German corporatzon and the'
prcdec&ssor of Fresenius Medlcal Care AG WR. Grace & Co., a New York corporatloﬁ, and
. National Medlcal Care, Inc.,.  dated July 31, 1996 attached as Exhibit C. o
. The United States retaxns any and all other rights and remedies it has'or may - -
" have under law and equity. | : o |
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d. No failure or delay on the part of the United States to exercise any nght or -
remedy shall operate as a waiver of the Uruted States’ rights. No smgle or partial exercise by the
United States of any nght or.remedy shall operate asa ‘waiver of the Umted States’ rights.
3. In an Event of Dezault under Paragraph 3.c. above (Commencement of Bankruptcy
or Reorganization'Pmceeding): ‘ | | ' . | |
a. NMC and FMCH agree not to contest or oppose any motion filed by the
United States seeking relief from or modxﬁcatmn ofthe automtic Stay of 11 US.C. § 3_62(3.); r{ot_to
seek relief under 11 U.8.C. § 105 to enjoin or restram the United States from recoveriﬁg r-noniesl_ |
‘0wed by NMC and FMCH arising out of this A‘greement or tﬁé attached Pfomissox}y Note, or from
recovering monies through presentment against the Letter of Credit. NMC and FMCH recognize that
ﬂﬂs eXpress waiver ié in consisleration for the settlement of claims by the United_ States described 1
| Preamble Paragraphs K through Y above, under the teﬁns a.nd conditions ;ontainéd in this Settlement
- Agreement, |
" b By expressly waiving the automatic stay p'rovisiofg NMC and FMCH agfee |
not to oppose or.inferfere with any motion made in federal court ('mciudiﬁg bankruptcy courts) by -
the Umted States to excludeLIFECi—iEM and MPD from participation in the Title XVIII (Medlcare)
Title XIX (Med:cazd) programs and other federal health care programs
6 Th.ts Agreemen: shali be vmdabie at the sole optmn of the Umted States
d. | If any term(s) of thxs Agreement are set aside for any r&son, mcludmg asa -

result of a pref'erence action brought pursuant to 11US.C. § 547, the Umted States, atitssole o ption -

and in its discretion, may rescind all terms of this Agreement and seek recovery of the full amountof -

claims and allegations identified herein and in the Civil Action, o, in the altemative, enforce the
remaining terms of this Agreement. Inthe event of rescission of this Agreement, all Parties reserve .
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all rights, claims, and defenses that are available under law and eqﬁity as of the Effective Dat.e of this
Agreement; and
el. In adc.;lition to the rights enumérated in Pa:agrap‘h 8.a. through 8.d. above, the
'Uru#:ed States and all other Parties shall retain aii nghts and claims they have or may have under law
and equzty | |
9. Subject to the exceptions and limitations inParagi'aph IQ below, in consideration of
the obﬁgaticn‘s of LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC and FMCH set forth in this Agreement conditioned
upon payment in full of the Settlement Amount subject to Paragraph 29 below (concerning
. bank:ruptcy proceedmgs commenced within 91 days of any payment under this Agreement) and
subject to the'acceptance by the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts of —
-~ LIFECHEMand MPD’s guilty pleas as described in Preamble Paragraphs CandD, the Uruted States '
on behaif cf xtself, and its oﬁicers agents, agencles, and departmeuts, will reIease and wﬁi be dcemed
to have released LIFECHEM, MPD, their parents, including NMC and FMCH, and the subsndlanes
‘of NMC and FMCH listed on thE-‘aftachéd_ Exhibit D (collectively, ti;e parents and subsiﬂia_:ies of
NMC and FMCH listed on Exhibit D will be referred to as the “NMC Companies,” and the corporate
- entities listed.on Exhibit D comprise the only entities wluch constltute the “NMC Companies” thhm

- the meanmg of this Agreement) and the current dxrectors, oﬁcers employees, and agents of the '

s NMC Compames who were not employed by orin anyway affiliated thh LIFECHEM, MPD NMC L

) orNMC’s parents, subs:dzanes, divisions, or affiliates at any. time -pnor.to Septémber 30, 1996, 'from

" any. civil or administra’tive monetary claim (including recoupment claims) that the United Staxés' has

L ormayhave undertheFalse Claims Act, 3 1 U S.C.§6. 3729-3733 the Program Fraud Civil Remedles~ ER

- Act, 31US.C.§§ 3801~3812 the Civil MonetaryPenaltles Law 42 U.8.C. § 1320a-7a; or common
\ .
%law claims for ﬁ'al_zd,- payment by mistake of fact, bm;h of contract or unjust enrichment for the
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conduct describea in Preamble Paragraphs K through Y above with respect to claims submitted or '
caused to be submitted to Medicare, Railroad Retirement Medicare, TRICARE, FEHBP, the VA,
| and/or the Medicaid programy of the Parﬁéipating States. | |

10. Notwithstandihg any term of this Agreement, the United States specifically does not
release LIFECHEM, MPD, theNMC.Compapies, or any individual from any and all of the following:
(a) any potential criminal, cmi or administrative claims ansmg under_ Title 26, U.S. Code (Internal
Revenue Code); (b) any cri;x;ﬁnal Habiﬁ-ty; tc) ény-potenﬁai Hability to the l;}'nited Statgs (or ax;y
agencies thereof) for any conduct other than that fdent_iﬁed in Px"iﬁmbie Paragraphs K through Y
above,.including but not limited to any allegations in the éivii‘ﬁcﬁon not cncompasséd by Preamble
.Paragraphs K ﬂkaugh&; (d) an.)ff-enﬁt.ics-not specifically included on t'he list of NMC Companies set
forth in Exhibit D, such omiuea entities specifically including Spectra Laboratories, Inc., SRC
Holding Company, Inc. and their subsidiaries; (e) any claims based upon such obligations as are.
created by ﬁs Agreement; (f) except as _e;p'licitly stated in thxs Agreement, any administrative
liability, including mandatory exclusion from Federal health cére programs; (g) any express or i_mpii;ed '
warranty claims or other. claims for defective or deficient products and services. provided byA
LiFECHEM orMPD, indiuding.q,uality of testing or product claims; (k) aﬂy claims for persénéi injury

or pr0pérty,darnage or for éther'consequential damages aﬁsiug ﬁ'oﬁt the cbnduct'- described in '

o - Pa:agraphs Kthrough Y above (1) any clains based uporz fa:!ure to dehver ztems or servnces (i) any o

civil or administrative claims agamst a.ny mdmdua! who was an oﬁcer du'ector tmstee, agent,'_
emptoyee,~cr was in any way aﬁhatet_i ‘with LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC, or NMC’S parents,
subsidiaries, divisions, or affiliates a.t-'-'an}?- time ﬁﬁor to Sep;emb&er 30, 1596; or (k). any cxv:i or
-adrninisgaﬁvq claims agamst any i_x_zdivi;iual,f;_‘inc]uding cm'rmt _dir_éctors, officers, employees*aﬁcrl

-
L) .
o
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| agents who is criminally indicted or convicted of an offense, or who enters a criminal plea related to
the conduct alleged in Preamble Paragraphs K through Y above. |

1 1.  Incompromisg and settlement of the rights of OIG-HHS to exclude LIFECHE.M and
MPD pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1320&-7(8.)’(1), both LEECI{EM and MPD agree to 8_: ggll;manehﬁ_y
excluded un'dér;ﬁis statﬁtorf provisio-n from participationin Medicare, Medicaid, anﬂ-aﬂ ptilér federal
health care programs as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(f). Such exclusion will have national effect
ana will also apply to all other Féderal procurement and nc;n-procurement programs. Fe&era! health
care progréms will not reimburﬁe LIFEC}IEM and/or MPD or any one else for items or sérvi;:es, |
including administrative and ?rnax;agement services, furnished, ordered or prescribed by LIF.BCHEM
. and MPD in 'an‘y capéci_ty. Both LIFECHEM and MPD waive any further notice of this exclusidn,
other than the notice descnbed in the last sentence of this paragraph, and agree not to contest such
exciuswn e;t.her adnumstratwely or in any State or Federal court. If LIFECHEM or MPD submits
or cguses claims to be submitted for services prcmded while excluded, LIF-ECI:EM and MPD are
-subject to the imposition of additional civil monetary-pénalties énd assessments. LIFECHEM and
MP}) further agrée to hold the federal programs, and all the federal progrargs’ beneficiaries-and/or
sponsors, harmless frr.im any financial respousébility for services‘ ﬁ;mished ordered or prescﬁbed ti';

E such beneﬁcxanes or sponsors after the effective date of this excluswn LIFECHEM and MPD |

o spemﬁcaily wa:ve their. nghts under any statute or regulationto’ payment from the Medtcare Ra:lroad_ i o

'. Renrement Medlcare 'IRICARE VA, FEHBP or Medxcaxd programs fcr services rendered afterthe R

: effectxve date of this exclusion. Tius exclusion will be eﬁ'ectzve upon the date that LIFECHEM and
e ,MPD receive the notice of exclusion from OIG-HHS |

12. FMCH, on behalf of itself and its parents, affiliates, subs:dlanes, and dmsmns. :

-including but not lumted toNMC, has entered i mto a Coxporate Integrity Agreement vnth HHS-0IG, L
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which is incorporated into this Agreement by reference. FMCH will immediately upon execution of
this Agreement implemenf its obligations under the Corporate Integrity Agreement.

13, Inconsideration ofthe obligations of LIFECHEM, MPD, :MC and FMCH set forth
in this Agreement, conditioned upon ga};ment in full pf the Settlement Amount, squect to Paragraph
29 below (conceming fs’anlaﬁptcy preceedings commenced within 91 days of any payment under this
Agreement), and qoediﬁor;ed upoﬁ PMCE’S entering into the Corporate Integrity Agreement, the
OIG-HHS agrees to release and refrain from iﬁstituting, directing, or maixitaining any adﬁtinistrative
claim or any action seeking ekclesioq from the Medicare, Medicaid or -other Federal health care
pregrams (as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(f)) against the NMC Companies and the current
- directors, officers, employees, and agents of the NMC Companies who were not employed 'by er in -
any ﬁay aﬂiﬁated with LIFECHEIVI, MFPD, NMC, or any of NMC’s pe&ntéf subsidiaries, divisions,
| or affiliates at aﬁy time prior to September 30, 1996, under 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7a (Civil Monetary’
Penalties };a;w) or42US.C. § i3;203~7(b) (pem:issive exclusion) for the conduct described in
Preamble Paragraphs K through Y, except as eesewed in Paragraph 10 above and as reserved in this
* Paragraph. _Tllhe OIG-HHS eicpressly reserves allrrightls to co_mp'iy with any statutory obligations to
exclude the NMC Companies from the Medicare Medicaid,; or"other Federal health care programs |

| under 42US.C. § 1320a~7(a)(mandatory exclu310n) Nothmg in th:s Paragraph preciudes the OIG-
B HUS from taking acnon agamst entztles oz‘ zndmduals for conduct and practlces for whlch civil claims : ‘
have been reserved in Pa:agraph 10 above o

14, In cons:deratlon of the obhganens of L[FECI-IEM, MPD, NMC and FMCH set forth
in this Agreement, conditioned upon payment in ﬁﬂl of the Setﬁement Amaunt, and subject to' |

7 _Para‘graph 29 below (conceming bankruptey gfeceedings commenced within 91 days of any payment .

-

£l

under this Agreement), TSO agrees to release and refrain from instituting, directing, or maintaining
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any administrative claim or any.action seeking exclusion from the 'I'Z;ICARE program against the
NMC Companies and the current directors, oﬂicers, employees, and agents of the NMC Companies
Whe were not employed by er in any way affiliated with LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC or NMC’s
subszdzanes divisions, and aﬁihates at any time pnor to September 30, 1996, under32 C.E. R § 199 9
for the conduct descnbed in Preamble Paragraphs K through Y, except as reserved in Paragraph 10
abcve and as reserved in this Paragraph. The TSO expressly reserves all’ nghts to comply with any _
statutory obhgatxons to exclude the NMC Companies from the TRICARE pro gram under 32CER |
§§ 199:9B(1EA), (f)(l)fi)(B), (1)), and ((1)(i). Nothingin this Paragraph precludesthe -
“TSO from takmg aciioe agaiest"e'rstities or persons,‘ or for conduct er practices, fer which c.ivi!_ claims
. have been reserved in Paragraph 10 s50ve |
15. In consxderatlon of the obligations of LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC and FMCH as set
“ -, forth in this Agreement, condmoned upon payment in full of the Settlement Amount, and subject to
. _Paragraph 29 beIew (concermng bankruptcy proceedmgs commenced within 91 days of any payment
_runder this Agreement) OPM agrees to release and refrain from msntutmg, dlrectmg, or. mamtalmng
any administrative _cla:m or any action seekmg exclusion ﬁ'om FEHBP against the NMC Compames
and the current directors, oﬁcers employees aed agents of the NMC Cdm‘panies who were not

'empioyed byorin any way aﬁhated with L}ZFECHEM MI’D NMC orNMC’s subsxdnanes dwzswns, .

Coor af.ﬁhates at any time prior to September 30; 1996 under 5 U sC.§ sgoza or 5 CFR. pae 970 .o

o -Afor the eonduct described in Preamble Paragraphs K through Y mcludmg that in the le Act:on, _

except as reserved in Paragraph 10 above, anc_l except lf the NMC‘Comp_ames or any mdmduals are

" excluded by the Office of Inspector General of HHS pursuart to 42 US.C. § 1320a-7(s). Nothing -

in.this paragraph prec!udes OPM fforn takmg action agamst entmes or persons or for conduct and -

- . practice for which cml claims have been teserved in Paragraph 10 above.
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16. Jay A. Buford, William L. Schoff and Russell J. Davis each agree thét the settlement
of ._t_he claims set forth in their Civil Action to the extent encompassed by Preamble Paragraphs K
through Y is fair, adequate and reaso—nable under. all the circumstances, th, to 31 US.C. §
3730)@)(B).
: i'l. The United States agrees to pay Jay A. Buford, lehamL Schoffand Rnssell L. Davis
(the “Relators”™) coﬂecnvely 16.5% of the federal share of the Settlement Amount ($109,632,867)
‘inatotal principal amount Qf eighteen million eighty—nine th_ousand four hundre_d twenty-three dollars |
s 13,039,42'3 ), ph;st 16.5% of the interest paid by NMC and FMCH, ifany. “To satisfy this obligation,
' the United States wﬂ! pay the Rgiatéé; colléctivel& 16.5% of the federal share of the ﬁayq'le_nts mader |
by NMC and FMCH: as they are received under the terms of the' Pi;om_iss_cry Note, as more
pa;ticuigrly set fonh i'nExh:ibit Ato tim PromissoryNote as those payménts relate to tiﬁs Agreement.
Thé,ﬁr;t payment tb Relators will be made -within 21 days after the First Payment Date, and
subsequent payments to the Reiators will be made within 21 days after each additional payment is |
received by the Umted States, by wire transfer to each ofthe Relatorsi m accardance with instructions
- to be provided by Relators’ counsel. Jay A.-Buford, Wilham L. Schoff, and Russell Davis, for -
themselves individually, and for their respective heirs, successors, and a.ssigns‘ will réiease and will

: ,,ba deemed to have reieased and: forever dlscharged the Umted States from any claims pursuant to31 _

o u. s. c. § 3730 1ncludmg3l Us. C. §§ 3730(b) ©. @ and @, for a share of the proceeds ofthe: Gonn

- Civil Actlon, ﬁom any cl_axms fcr a share of the’ Settlement Amount, andfrom' any claims arising from N

the filing of their Civil ACtion, ahd in full settlement of claims under this Agreeme:nt. ThisAgreement

- .-does not resoive or inany’ manner affect any claxms the United Statcs has or may have agamst the-. SR v

. Relators Jay A. Buford, Wiliam L. Schoff, or Rnssell L. Davis arising under I't!e 26, U.S. Code |
(Intemal Revenue Code), or any clauns ansmg under this Agreemeni
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18.  After this Agreement is fully executed, the United States and the Relators will notify.
the Court that all pcrtﬁaent Parties have sﬁpulalf:d that, to the extent alleged in Paragraphs K ﬂu0ugh ,
Y only, the Ciﬁl Action shall }m dismissed with prejudice effective upon recefpt by the United_. Sta_ztes
and the Participating States of tﬁe payrhems ciescribed in Paragraph 1 above, pursuant to and
co':isistent. vnth the-t"er'ms lof this Agreanent. ;I;hc United States will notify fl;e- Court that it deﬁﬁnes
to intervene in the remaining claims b'jf the Reiators in the Civil Action, to the extent not alleged in
.Preamble Paragraphs K through Y, and that ‘the Relators mtend to proceed on those clauns The'
Parties’ agree that the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts shall maintain -
junsdicnon of the unresolved cIa:ms in the le Action, all clalms in the Civil Action in the event that.
the Plea Agreements refer_egced in Preamble Pamgmphs C and D are not accepted by the Court, in
anEvent éf Default, in the event of dispufes under‘t_his A_greemené, and for pui‘pose_s of resolving any
'dispute”s regarding: the Relators_-’A claim a’gaiast LIFE(:HEM MPD, and the NMC Companies for
reasonable attbmey"s’ fees; e;_q"aenses and costs ﬁursﬁant to 31 US.C. § 3‘730,(d), arising ﬁ‘ofn the

filing of the Civil Action:

19 LIFECHEM, MPD, and the NMC Companies waive and will not assert any defenses .

these entities may have to-any cnmlnal prosecunon or admlmstratxve actmn relating to the conduct

descnbed in Preamble Paragraphs K through Y, w!uch defenses may be based in whole or.in part on |

L 7- a contentlon that, under the DOuble Jecpardy Clause of the Fxﬁh Amendment of the Consumtson or RRERES

Excessive Fm&c Clause of theElgﬁth Amendment of the Consﬁtutzon, this SettlementAgreement bars - -

a remedy sought in such criminal prosewuon or adnumstratwe action. LIFECHEM ME’D and the .
' NMC Companzes further agree that nothmg in ﬂus Agreement is punitive in purpose or e&‘ect. |

20. | Eﬁ'ectwe on the date of acceptance by the Court of the Piea Agreements referenwd
in Preamb:e Paragraphs C and D, LIFECHEM, MPD and the NMC Compames release and will be
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" deemed to have released the United States, its agencies, empioyees, ‘'servants, and agents from any
claims (including attorneys fees, costs, and expenses of every kind aéd however denominated) which
LIFECHEM, MPD, and the:NMC Companies have pr-mz:ly have against the United States, its
agencies, employe'és, servants, and agents, related to or a.risiﬁg from thé United States' civil, criminal
and administrative investigation and -prosecut:ion ofLIEECHEM,mb, NMC and FMCH.

21.  The Settlement Amount that NMC and FMCH must pay pursﬁa’m to this Agreement
by electronic wire t.ransfer pursuant to i’axagfaph 1 above will not be decreased as a rgsuit of the |
denial of clauns for payment now beiﬂg w‘ithheld. from .payment by any Medicar-e- carrier or

~ intermediary, Railroad Rct_irementMedica;jre carrier, 'IRICARE, FEH?P-,_VA, orany Medicaid payer,
related to the conduct described in Preamble Paragraphs K through ¥; and LIFECHEM, MPD and .

. the NMC Companies agree not to re#ubmi_t to any Medican; carier ‘or intennediaﬁr, Ra.ilroadr :

Retirement Medicare carrier, TRICARE, 'FE‘EBP; VA, or any Medlcaxd p,iy_'er aﬁy previously denied
claims related to the conduct described in Preamble Paragrapﬁs K ﬁquugh Y, and agree notto app’ea%

~any _sucﬁ denials of claims. | |

22, .The NMC Companies agree that all costs (as defined in the Federal Acquisition

iReguIa’.ﬁons ("FAR") § 31.205-47 and in Titles XVIII and XIX of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S. .

' §§ 1395- l395ddd (1997) and. i396—1396v(1997) and the regulat:ons promuigated thereunder)

s Emcurred by or on beha!f of LIFECHEM MPD, and the NMC Compames and their dmszons, ;

: 'subsuhanes and aﬁ'lliates, and thelr present and former oﬁcers dlrectors employees, shareholders.- Sl

~and. agents in connection w:th (a) the matters covered by thls Agreement and. the related Plea

3 Agreements described in Preamble I’aragraphs Cand D; (b)"the'-GOYemmenf s a dmmuve;m L

-and criminal investigation and prosecution of LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC, and FMCH; (c) these
‘corporate entities” investigation, defense, and corrective actions undertaken in response to the
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- Government’s administrative, civil and criminal investigations, and in connection with the matters
covered by this Agreement, the Plea Agreements, and including the obligations undertaken pursuant
to the Corporate Integrity Agreement (including attomeys fees); (d) the hegotiationrand performance

of this Agreement; the Plea Agfeements,_ and the Corporate Integrity Agreement; and (e) the

payments made to the United States pi‘ovided for in this Agl;eement' and the Plea Agreements, and B

to Relators for attbmey‘s fees.and costs, are unallowable costs on Government contracts and under

Medicare, Rad.read Retzrement Medicare, Medicaid, 'I'RICARE FEHBP and the VA programs

(hereafter unallowabie costs") ’I'hese unaliowable costs will be separately esumated and accounted

for by LIFECHEM MPD -and the NMC Comparues and these entities wi]l not charge such

_unallowable costs directiy or indirectly to any contracts with the United States or any Medicaid
‘ program, or seek payment for euch unallowable costs through any cost report, cost etatement,
- mfennafion stafemeet or payment request submitted by theNMC Companies or any of their divisions,
‘ subsidiaries or affiliates to the Medicare, Railroad Retirement Medicare, Medicaid, TRICARE, YA

or FEHBP prog—rams ‘

LIFECHEM, MED, and the NMC Companies further agree that within 270 days of the

effective date ‘of’ this - Agreement these entities will identify to applicable Medicare, Railroad

_ARetxrementMedlcare and ’IRICAREﬁscaJ mtermedtanes carriers and/or contractors, andMedlcajd,

"'VA and FEEBP ﬁscal agents any unaliowable costs (a5 deﬁned above) mc!uded in payments
'prevzously sought_ ﬁ'om the Umted States, or any Medicaid Program, inciizding,' but not Iimi'ted te T
payments sought in any cost reports cost statements, mfarmaﬂon reports; or payment requests :

: —already submitted bytheNMC Compa.mes oranyofthelr mbsxdxanes aﬁhates ordmszons and wﬂi-‘-

‘ request, and agree, that such cost reports, cost statements mformatlon reports or payment requests, '

\

evenif a!ready settled, be adjusted to account for the effect of the inclusion of the una!!owabie costs
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LIFECHEM, M?D, and the NMC Companies agree that the United States will be entitled to recoup
from the NMC Companies any overpayment as a result of the inclusion of such unallowable costs on
o[eviously-subnﬁtted cost reports, inforroaﬁon reports, cost statesheois orrequests fotoayment. Any
'oayments doe aﬂer the adjustments heve been made shall be paid to the United States pufsoant to the |
direetidn'of the Department of Iustice,'aod!or the affected agencies. The United Stat_es feservesits
| rights to disagree thh any calculations submitted by LIFECHEM, MPD, the NMC Companies, or
Va‘ny of their subsidiaries,~ aﬁhates or ofvisions, on the eff'ect of inclusioo of unallowable costs (as _

. defined above) on the NMC Companies or any of their subsidiaries, 7aﬁliates or divisions’ cost

reports, cost statements or, information reports. Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute awaiver ©

of the rights of the Umted States’ to examine or reexanune the unallowab}e costs descnbed above. .
23, . Thxs Agreement is mtended to be for the beneﬁt of the Parnes only, and by th:s-. :
instrument the Pames do riot release any c}eums agamst any other person of entity except as
spea_ﬁcally identified in Paragraph 9,13, 14, 15, and 17'aboye. |
‘24. LIFECﬁEM MPD aod the NMC Companies agree that they will not-seek payment
for any of the health care billings covered by this Agreement from any health care beneficiaries or.
their parerxts sponsors estates, heirs, SUCCESSOrs or assigns. LIFECHEM MPD and the NMC

- ‘Companies waive any causes of action agamst these beneﬁc:anes or theirj parents sponsors estates, :

L ;,he:rs successors or asszgns based upon the cialrns for payment covered by thxs Agreement.

25. The NMC Compames covenant to cooperate fully and tmﬁ:ﬁxlly with theUmtedf’ i

- -States’ civil _mvesﬁgation of individuais not speciﬁca]ly released in this Agreement. The NMC
- Companies will make reasonable efforts to facilitate accéss to, and encoorage the cooperation of its,
directors, officers and employees for interviews and testimony, consistent with the rights and

Y
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privileges of such individuals, and will furnish to the Untied States, upon reasonable request, all non-
’ pxivileged documents and records in its possession, custody or control.

26.  Nothing in this Agreément constitutes an agreement by the Uhited'.Statcs concerming
the chaiacterization of the arﬁounts paid -heréunder for pu;posés of any p_rcceeding'qndér Title 26 of
_ﬁie Internal Revenue Code. | | ‘

27.  Except as provided'in Paragraph 6.b., and except for Relators’ unress[ved claim -
against LIFECHEM, MPD, and the NMC Companies for reasonable attomeys fees, expenses and

- costs pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3730(d), each party to this Agreementwﬂi bear lus oritsown iegal and
other costs mcurred in connection with this matter, including. hy way of example only, all costs'
incurred in the mves_tlganon and defense of this matter, the preparation and- pcrformance of this
Agreement, and all corrective actions taken in response té the investiga..tion ;and resolution of this
mhatter. - | |

28. " NMCand FMCH-expressfy warrant that they have reviewed-their ﬁnanéial cdnditién
and that they cﬁrréntly-are Esolvent ona con‘solidate_d basis within the meanifng of 11 U.8.C. Section
547_(b)(3),,andwexpgct to remain solvent on a ccnsolidéted bas_is foﬂowiné payment to the United-

- States hereunder. Further‘ the Parties expressly warrant that, in evahiating whether to execute this

: Agreement, the Parties (a) have mtended that the mutual pronuses covenants and obhgatxons set

- jfgrth herem censntute a contempnraneous exchange for new value gwen to. LIFECHEM’ MPD 7- R

‘NMC and FMCH within thic mearing of 11 US.C. Section 547(c)(1), and (b) have concluded that .
these mutua! promises, covenants, and obligations do, in fact, constltute, such a contemporaneous,

exchange.

29. Inthe eventNMCorFMCHcommences orathuty partycommences w1thm 91 days R

of any payment under of thzs Agreement, any case, proceedmg, or other action (’) uader any law
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-relanng to bankruptcy, msolvency, reorganization or relief of debtors, seekmg to have any order for

relief of NMC and/or FMCH’s debts, or seekmg to adjudicate NMC andfor FMCH as bankrupt or
'insolvent, or (ii) seeking appeintment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other sumlar official for
.‘ NMC and/or FMCH or for aii or any substantal part of NMC and/or FMCH’S assets, NMC and
 FMCH agree as foilows
a NMC and.E'MCH’s obligations under this_Ag;‘eenient ‘may not be:a‘{oidgd, -. _ |
~ pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section 547, and NMC and FMCH will not argue or otherwise take' the -
position in any such case, proceedxng or action that: (1) NMC and/or FMCH’s obhganons under th:s _' .
| Agreement may be avolded under 11 US.C. Secnon 547 (i) NMC and FMCH were insolvent on
a consohdated basis.at the time this Agreement was entered into, or became msolvent on a 
consolidated bas_is as aresult of tﬁe payment made to t}ae United Stﬁtes‘herezmder; or (ﬁi) the mtﬁxal
ﬁréniises, cover_larits.'anél éI?iigaﬁons set forth in this Agreement do not constitute a mntemppmneo&s
ex'c_h_é_nge for new’ﬁcalue given to NMC and/or FMCH. | ) |

| b. In the event that NMC and/or FMCH’s obligations he'reﬁnder -are‘ avoid_éd’

_ pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section 54;1', the Uni_ted-States_, atits sole optioﬁ, may rescind the rel:eé;Scs in-

this- Agreement:_-and-brin‘g"any civil -and/or adnﬁnistrative claim, action or proceeding a‘gziinst

L -LE’ECI—IEM MPD, NMC andlor FMCH for the claims that would otherwnse be covered by the .

' f-_releases provxded in Paragraph 9 13 14 and 15 above Ifthe Umted States chcoses to do 50, '"f, S

Li:FECI—IEM, MPD NMC and I'MCH agree that @ any such claims, actions or proceedmgs brought

: ‘uy the Umted States (includmg any proceedmgs to exclude LIFECHEM andfor M?D ﬁ‘om' :
o part:mpahon in Medicare, Medxcaxd, or othm' federal health care programs) are not subject to an.; :
autom‘aﬂc Stay'f pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section 362(a) as a result of the actian, case or proc_eeding B
" described in the first clause of this Paragraph, and that LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC and FMCszII not
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argue or otherwise contend that the United States' claims, actions or p:ceeedings are subject t-o an
automatic stay; (i) that LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC and FMCH will not plead, argue or otherwise raise
any defenses under the theories of statute of limitations, IaEhes, estoppel or similar theories, to any
such civil o;-admihistratiye 'claime, actions or proceeding whlch a:e Brought by the Uﬁi_ted Staj.‘es
- within 50 calendar days of written notification to NMC andFMCH that the releases herein .ﬁave.been '
rescinded pursuant to this Paragraph, except to the extent ez;c:h defenses were available on December
15, 1994; and (ji) ﬂie Unitee States has a valid claim against NMC a.né FMCH in the anioupt of the
- Default Obligation, and.ﬂ;e United States may pursue its claim,__"ietter alia, in the case, action or
' proceeding refeeenced in the first clause of this Paragraph,as well as in any other case, a'c:tion,. or -~
. proceeding, - | |
c LIFECHEM, MPD, NMC and FMCH acielowledge thatits agreementsin this |
| _farag_raph'aré provided in exchange for ﬁluable considet&tien provided in tl_;is‘Agreement.

30. | LIFECHEM, MPli NMC, FMCH, and each of the Relators represent fhae | this
Agreement 1s _freely and voluntarily eqtered intg. with'out any degree of l duress or compulsion
whatsoever. - | |

31.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States. The Patties ‘ag;;ree that

. B the exciuswe;unsdlctxon and venue for any d;sputes ansmg between and among the Partu:s undertlus ‘

AT Agreement will be the Umted States Dlstnct Ccurt for the sttnct of Massachusetts, except that ) ke

.dlsputes nsmg under the Corporate Integnty Agreement shall be resolved exclus:weiy upon the'. T

dxspute resolution | prev:sxons set forthin the Corporate Integnty Agreement
g -32; The undersxgned LIEECHEM ‘MPD, NMC and FMCH sxgnatorm represent and'*-'i-' .
warrant that they are authonzed by their respectwe Board of Directors to exemte this Agreement

l
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'ﬂ;e ﬁnd_ersigned United States signatories represent that they are sjg‘ning this Agreement in their

respective cfficial capacities and that they are authorized to execute this Agreement.

33. Except for the guilty gieas by ;..IFECHEM and MPD, and thc representations n

Paragrﬁplis 28 (regarding solvency) and Paragraph 29 (conceming bankruptcy proceedmgs

commenced within 91 days of any payments under this Agreement), the Parties agree that notlung _

in this Agreement conshtutes an admlsmon by any person or entity with respect to any issue of law

or f_act_.

34. . This Agreement is effective on the date of signature of the last signatory to the

Agreﬁment (the “Effective Date”).
35.  This Agreement shall be binding on all successors, transferees, heirs.and assigﬁs.
36 ~ This Ag;;eemént, 'together wzth attachments A’ through’ D, the-Plea Agreements
‘described in Preamble Pa;-é,gzaph; C and D, and the Corporate Integrity Agreement, constitute the

completé agreement among ﬁle Parties withregard to the conduct described in Preamble Paragraphs

K through Y. This Agreement may not be amended except by wntten consant of the Parues except

that. only FMCH a.nd OIG- HHS must agree in wntmg to modification of the Corporate Integnty '

Agreex_nent-

37. Tins Agreement may be executed in counterparts each of w!nch shal! consntute an. L '

e ongmal and a]l of whxch shali consntute one and the same Agreemcnt

'UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

| _SUSAN G WINKLER ‘
- Assistant United States Attorey "\
~ District of Massachusetts
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By:

N\M S Dated:_|+ |9 0O
LAURENCE J. FREEDMAN |
MAYA S. GUERRA

Civil Division .

United States Department of Justice

Dated:

LEWIS MORRIS
Assistant Inspector General
Office of Inspector General

o Us. Department of Health and Human Services

Dated:-

FRANK D. TITUS
Assastant Director for Insurance Programs
U.S. Office of Personnel Management

Dated:

ROBERT L. SHEPHERD

Deputy General Counsel

TRICARE Support Office

United States Department-of Defense

Dated:

LEWIS MORRIS
Assistant Inspector General, HHS-O{G

- For the Railroad Retiremerit Medicare Program
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Jan~18-00 04:{6pz  Froa-DHHS ' 4 T-688  P.03/83  F-553

/

!

LAURENCE J. FREEDMAN
MAYA S. GUERRA -
_vaﬂ Division

- Uhnited States Dcpa.ttm.ent of Tustice

By 7%7«4-— _ Dued:__if/7/00
. Office of Inspector General
: US Department ofHeeIthandemn Services

Bv: - . - s Dated:
o FRANK D, TITUS - ' -
Assistant Director for Insurance Programs
U.S. Office of Personnél Management

A By . K . Dated:
o ROBERT L. SHEPHERD : ‘
' " Deputy General Counsel
TRICARE Support Office
United States Dcpartmmt ofDefcnse

- SRR | vl . Daed: s loe
' Amm:nspmsm,ms-ma ' - S L
FonheleroadEmrcmmMumgmm

. -
30. .
L 4
_--.un.m A M A v ok e T L g, bt L e b St Y e e 7 bk T R e -
I e T ety - - - —— ——— . —— e ar - — —— s et e ¢ e
: R i ETRL B 3 ey 4T T o wm L a o N o . d — ~ —_
D N PR

!



Mu

R L

" By:

LAURENCE]J, PRE.EDMAN
MAYA. 5. GUERRA - .
Civil Division

United States Department of Justico

LEWIS MORRIS

Assistant Inspector General
‘Office of Inspector General
U.S. DeparunentofHeu&h and Human Services

B,r D Zt

]’:"RANK D. TITUS .
" Assistant Director for Insurance Programs
u.s. Ofﬁcc of Personnel Managcmem

ROBERT 1. SHEPHERD
Deputy General Counsel
* “TRICARE Support Office
United States Departrient ofDefEnse

_LEWIS MORRIS
Assistant Inspector Gmeral, HHS-OIG :
: Fer theRailmad Retirement MedmreProgtam

b de Ve VMR UL Ulu-iNY/SVAD

Dated-

Dated:

@m}mm

- L —

ated: oz 2 ‘f Z i
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By: : - - Dated:
- LAURENCE J. FREEDMAN
. MAYA 8. GUERRA -
Civil Division
United States Department of Justice

By . ‘ - Dated:
LEWIS MORRIS _
Assistant; Inspector Geperal
Office of Inspector General -
U S. Depanment of Health and Human Services

FRANK D. TITUS o S
Assistant Director for Insurance Programs
U.S. Office of Personnel Management -

By: %WJWL Dated: /- /&-;_.0_0

ROBERT D- SEAMAN
Baw@yGeneralCounsel
TRICARE Support Office
United States Department of Defense
Assxstant]nspectarGenetal,HHS-OIG
For the Railroad Retirement Medicare Progmm‘ :
13\ i
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JAN-17-8@ 13:41 FROM:DOJ USAO BOSTON CIVIL ACE 1D:617748387)

-By:
By

By

"By:

By:

- BENJ.LIPPS

LIFECHEM, INC., NMC MEDICAL PRODUCTS, I."I C,
NATIONAL MEDICAL CARE, INC. and FRESENIUS |
MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, E\IC

/5?% T2 s

" BENJ. LIPPS
President, LIFECHEM, INC.

///;"\//ZJW Dated: _ empll, Jowo
BEm LIPPS . v
President, NMC Medical Products, Inc.

o P e : patcd.éjmua 7 o0t

President, National Medwal Care Inc

%’* //"/z?f‘” Dated: 'ﬁ’og!ﬁ’m.

BEN J, LIPPS ,
President, Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc.

Acknowledged:

Dated:

Dated: / ‘// _f’-"/ Y

= Bates: 1182000
HAROLDDMLN | R e
E STONE | -

omeys for LIFECHEM, INC., NMC Medical Products, Inc
National Medical Ca.re., Iac., and Fs&senms Medical Care Holdings, Inc
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Jan 18 00 01:01p Rusty J. Davis _ 704—5’?3*0580'

pi1
. R ty
RELATORS JAY A. BUFORD, WILLIAM L. SCOCTE
: : and RUSSELL i. DAVIS 7
By: WW __ Dated:_ot[ig oo
Y 3ched T
| Y N ) -
By: ~ i DLy . patsa_@1 /18 Jop
WILLIAM T SCHOFE o f) - o ;
ayz-'@w%@: Duset:_ -/ /5.[&0 '
- RUSSELLE. DAV
. . Acknowledged:
, -, |
Duted; &1 /] E/;aaa
“ounsel t Messts. Buford, Schoff and Davis
2 - . )



